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dedicated to use as public highways as distinguished from the acquisi­
tion by the county of a right-of-way for the construction of a highway. 
Even this section doe;; not authorize the county commissioners them­
selves to erect cattle guards, appurtenances and gates upon a public 
highway which has been laid out by the county under the statute as that 
right is confined to dedicated roads or trails, that is, roads or trails that 
have been laid out or erected by persons rather than the county com­
missioners and which have been or will be dedicated by said persons to 
the public. (See section 1612 R.C.M. 1921.) 

From the foregoing, it is my opinion that the board of county com­
missioners does not have the authority to grant to any person the author­
ity to erect a fence across the right-of-way of a public highway even 
though there is left an auto gate with cattle guards for the passage of 
motor vehicles and gates in the fence to permit the passage of livestock 
by opening of such gates. 

Very truly yours, 
L. A. FOOT, 

Attorney General. 

Building and Loan Associations-Withdrawals-Deduc­
tions-Losses. 

The losses which are authorized to be deducted when a 
member withdraws from a building and loan association are 
his share of the losses which have actually occurred at the 
time but which have not been paid out of the contingent fund 
because it became exhausted by the payment of prior losses 
therefrom. 

Freeman, Thelen & Freeman, 
Attorneys at Law, 

Great Falls, Montana. 

Gentlemen: 

November 10, 1931. 

I have your request for an opinion concerning the proposed by-laws 
fol' building and loan associations. 

With reference to the provision of subdivision 8 of section 12 of 
chapter 163 of the laws of 1929 providing for withdrawals of stock 
wherein it is stated that a withdrawing member is entitled to receive all 
dues paid in and all dividends declared less interest, if any, as provided 
in subsection 7, less a reasonable membership fee not exceeding 2% of 
the par value of each share of stock and "less a pro rata share of all 
losses, if any, which have occurred," will say that, in my opinion, the 
above quoted words have reference to losses which at the time of with­
drawal have actually occurred and which have not been paid out of the 
contingent fund because the said fund was exhausted. This seems clear 
when section 19 of chapter 57 of the laws of 1927 is taken into consid­
~ration. Said section provides that "further losses," should there be any, 
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shall be assessed against the stock credits of the members of the associa­
tion. The phrase "further losses" appears plainly to mean those losses 
which are in excess of those which exhausted the contingent fund for 
section 18 of the same chapter provides that all losses shall be paid out 
of the contingent fund until the same is exhausted. 

Section 19, above mentioned, was amended by chapter 167 of the 
laws of 1931 but it is again therein provided that losses in excess of the 
contingent fund and reserve fund shall be assessed pro rata among the 
stockholders of the association. It seems reasonably clear to me that the 
deduction authorized by said subdivision 8 from the sum to be paid a 
withdrawing member on account of his pro rata share of all losses, if 
any, which have occurred, means his share of the losses which have 
actually occurred but which have not been paid out of the contingent 
fund because prior losses had exhausted the same for the right to assess 
the credits of the stockholders with losses only arises after the contin­
gent fund has been exhausted by the payment of prior losses. 

Very truly yours, 

L. A. FOOT, 
Attorney General. 

Bonds-Secretary of Stat~Filing. 

Bonds required under section 3592.2, 1830.5 and 1805.42, 
R.C.M. Supplement 1921, are not official bonds such as are 
referred to in section 464, R.C.M. 1921, and therefore it is 
not necessary that the same be filed in the office of the secre­
tary of state. 

Mr. W. E. Harmon, 
Secretary of State, 

Helena, Montana. 

My dear Mr. Harmon: 

November 12, 1931. 

You have requested my OpInIOn whether the bonds provided for 
under sections 3592.2, 1830.5 and 1805.42, R.C.M. Supplement 1921 should 
be filed in your office, and, if so, whether the charge of $5.00 for receiv­
ing and recording each official bond fixed by paragraph 13 of section 
145 would apply. 

In this regard you have referred to section 464, R.C.M. 1921, and the 
provisions of chapter 40, part III, Political Code of Montana of 1921. 
However, I wish to advise you that under the provisions of this chapter 
you are only required to file official bonds and since none of the bonds 
required under the sections in question are official bonds it is not neces­
sary that the same be filed in your office. 

Very truly yours, 

L. A. FOOT, 
Attorney General. 
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